
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND

VIZIO, INC., )
39Tesla )
Irvine,California92618 Civil Action No. __________

)
Plaintiff, )

v. JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

LG ELECTRONICS INC.,
LG Twin Towers )
20 Yoido-dong,Youngdungpo-Gu )
Seoul, 150-721,SouthKorea )
SERVE: )

Ministry ofCourtAdministration )
Attn.: Directorof InternationalAffairs )
967 Seocho-dong,Seocho-gu )
SEOUL 137-750,SOUTHKOREA )

LG ELECTRONICS U.S.A., INC.,
1000SylvanAvenue )
EnglewoodCliffs, New Jersey,07632 )
SERVE: )

RegisteredAgent )
CSC-LawyersIncorporatingServiceCompany )
7 St. Paul Street,Suite 1660 )
Baltimore,MD 21202 )

Defendants. )

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiff VIZIO, Inc., for its ComplaintagainstDefendantsLG Electronics, Inc. and

LG Electronics U.S.A., Inc. allegesasfollows:

THE PARTIES

1. Plaintiff VIZIO, Inc. (“VIZIO”) is acorporationorganizedandexistingunder

the lawsof theStateofCaliforniawith its principalplaceofbusinessat39 Tesla,Irvine,

California92618. VIZIO is a leadingsellerof LCD displaytelevisionsin theUnitedStates.
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2. DefendantLG Electronics, Inc. (“LGE”) is aSouthKoreancorporationwith its

principalplaceofbusinessat LU Twin Towers,20 Yoido-dong,Youngdungpo-Gu,Seoul,150-

721, SouthKorea. LGE andsubsidiariesactingat its directionandunderits control,

manufacture,inter alia, LCD andplasmadisplaytelevisions.

3. LG Electronics, U.S.A., Inc. (~‘LGEUS”)is a corporationorganizedand

existing underthe lawsofthe StateofNew Jerseywith its principalplaceof businessat 1000

SylvanAvenue,EnglewoodCliffs, New Jersey,07632. LGEUS is a subsidiaryofLGE that

operatesat LGE’s directionin importing, marketingand selling, in this districtandelsewherein

theUnitedStates,avarietyof consumerelectronicproducts,includingLCD andplasmadisplay

televisions.LGE’s andLGEUS’s televisionsare sold in theUnitedStatesunderthebrandname

LU.

4. LGE andLGEUS arehereafterreferredto collectivelyas“Defendants.”

JURISDICTIONAND VENUE

5. This actionarisesunderthepatentlawsof theUnitedStates,Title 35, United

StatesCode.

6. This Courthasoriginaljurisdictionover thesubjectmatterof this patent

infringementactionpursuantto theprovisionsof 28 U.S.C. §~S1331and 1338(a).

7. Defendantsaresubjectto personaljurisdictionin theStateofMarylandbecause

theytransactbusinessin thisjudicial district anddivision by, amongotherthings,regularlyand

systematicallyoffering for saleandselling theirproducts(including infringing televisions)

throughMarylandretailerswho in turn reselltheproductsto Marylandconsumers.Upon

informationandbelief, LGEUS hasan office in Marylandlocatedat 8108GrayStoneLane,

Pasadena,Maryland 21122. Further,Defendantshavecommittedactsof directinfringement,
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contributoryinfringement,and/orinducementof infringement,ofoneormoreof theclaimsof

one or moreof thepatents-in-suitin this judicial districtanddivision.

8. Venue is properly laid in this judicial districtpursuantto 28 U.S.C.§~1391(b),

1391(c),and 1391(d),aswell as28 U.S.C. §1400(b).

COUNT I

(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 5,511,096)

9. VIZIO repeats,realleges,and incorporatesby reference,asthoughfully setforth

herein,theprecedingparagraphs.

10. On April 23, 1996,theUnitedStatesPatentandTrademarkOffice (“USPTO”)

issuedU.S. PatentNo. 5,511,096titled “QuadratureAmplitude ModulatedDatafor Standard

BandwidthTelevisionChannel,”(hereafter“the ‘096 Patent”). A trueandcorrectcopyofthe

‘096 Patentis attachedheretoasExhibit A.

11. VIZIO is theownerofall rights, title andinterestin the ‘096 Patent,with thefull

andexclusiveright to bringsuit to enforcethis patentandrecoverfor pastinfringement.

12. Uponinformationandbelief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,and arecontinuing to infringeeitherliterally and/orunderthedoctrineof equivalents,

the ‘096 Patentby practicingoneor moreclaimsof the ‘096 Patentin themanufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,and/orimportationof digital televisions.

13. Uponinformationand belief, in violationof 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,andarecontinuingto infringe, the ‘096 Patentby contributingto and/oractively

inducingothersto infringe one ormoreclaimsof the ‘096 Patentby theirmanufacture,use,

offeringfor sale,sale,supplyingand/orimportationofdigital televisions.
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14. As aresultofDefendant’sinfringement,VIZIO hassuffered,andwill continueto

suffer damages.

15. VIZIO is entitled to recoverfrom Defendantsthedamagesit hassustainedasa

resultof Defendants’infringing acts in an amountsubjectto proofat trial. VIZIO is also

entitled to its costsof suit andinterest.

16. Uponinformationandbelief, Defendants’actsof infringementwerein conscious

andwillful disregardfor VIZIO’s patentrights,andtheresultingdamageto VIZIO is suchasto

warrantthetrebling of damagesto providejust compensation.

17. UnlessDefendantsareenjoinedby this Courtfrom continuingtheir infringement

ofthe ‘096 Patent,VIZIO will sufferadditionalirreparableharmandimpairmentof thevalueof

its patentrights andis, therefore,entitledto apermanentinjunctionagainstfurther infringement.

COUNT II

(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 5,621,761)

18. VIZIO repeats,realleges,andincorporatesby reference,asthoughfully setforth

herein,theprecedingparagraphs.

19. On April 15, 1997,theUSPTOissuedU.S. PatentNo. 5,621,761titled

“Rotationally InvariantTrellis CodingIncorporatingTransparentBinary ConvolutionalCodes,”

(hereafter“the ‘761 Patent”). A trueand correctcopyof the ‘761 Patentis attachedheretoas

Exhibit B.

20. VIZIO is theownerof all rights, title and interestin the ‘761 Patent,with thefull

and exclusiveright to bring suit to enforcethis patentandrecoverfor pastinfringement.

21. Uponinformationandbelief, in violation of35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,andarecontinuingto infringeeitherliterally and/orunderthedoctrineof equivalents,
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the ‘761 Patentby practicingoneor moreclaimsofthe ‘761 Patentin themanufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,and/orimportationofdigital televisions.

22. Uponinformationandbelief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,andarecontinuingto infringe, the ‘761 Patentby contributingto and/oractively

inducingothersto infringe oneor moreclaimsof the ‘761 Patentby theirmanufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,supplyingand/orimportationofdigital televisions.

23. As aresultof Defendants’infringement,VIZIO hassuffered,and will continueto

sufferdamages.

24. VIZIO is entitled to recoverfrom Defendantsthedamagesit hassustainedasa

resultof Defendants’infringing actsin an amountsubjectto proofat trial. VIZIO is also

entitled to its costsof suit and interest.

25. Uponinformationandbelief, Defendants’actsof infringementwerein conscious

andwillful disregardfor VIZIO’s patentrights,andtheresultingdamageto VIZIO is suchas to

warrantthetreblingofdamagesto providejust compensation.

26. UnlessDefendantsareenjoinedby this Courtfrom continuingtheir infringement

ofthe ‘761 Patent,VIZIO will sufferadditionalirreparableharmandimpairmentofthevalueof

its patentrights andis, therefore,entitled to apermanentinjunctionagainstfurther infringement.

COUNT III

(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 5,703,887)

27. VIZIO repeats,realleges,andincorporatesby reference,asthoughfully set forth

herein,theprecedingparagraphs.
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28. OnDecember30, 1997,theUSPTOissuedU.S. PatentNo. 5,703,887titled

“SynchronizationandErrorDetectionin a PacketizedData Stream,”(hereafter“the ‘887

Patent”). A trueandcorrectcopyof the ‘887 Patentis attachedheretoasExhibit C.

29. VIZIO is theownerofall rights, title andinterestin the ‘887 Patent,with thefull

and exclusiveright to bringsuit to enforcethis patentandrecoverfor pastinfringement.

30. Uponinformationandbelief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,and arecontinuingto infringeeitherliterally and/orunderthedoctrineofequivalents,

the ‘887 Patentby practicingoneor moreclaimsof the ‘887 Patentin themanufacture,use,

offeringfor sale,sale,and/orimportationof digital televisions.

31. Uponinformationandbelief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,andarecontinuingto infringe, the ‘887 Patentby contributingto and/oractively

inducingothersto infringe oneor moreclaimsof the ‘887 Patentby theirmanufacture,use,

offeringfor sale,sale,supplyingand/orimportationofdigital televisions.

32. As aresultofDefendants’infringement,VIZIO hassuffered,andwill continueto

sufferdamages.

33. VIZIO is entitled to recoverfrom Defendantsthedamagesit hassustainedasa

resultof Defendants’infringing actsin an amountsubjectto proofat trial. VIZIO is also

entitledto its costsof suit andinterest.

34. Uponinformationandbelief, Defendants’actsofinfringementwerein conscious

andwillful disregardfor VIZIO’s patentrights, andtheresultingdamageto VIZIO is suchasto

warrantthetreblingof damagesto providejustcompensation.
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35. UnlessDefendantsare enjoinedby this Court from continuingtheir infringement

ofthe ‘887 Patent,VIZIO will sufferadditional irreparableharmand impairmentof thevalueof

its patentrights and is, therefore,entitled to apermanentinjunctionagainstfurther infringement.

COUNT IV

(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 5,745,522)

36. VIZIO repeats,realleges,andincorporatesby reference,asthoughfully setforth

herein,theprecedingparagraphs.

37. OnApril 28, 1998,theUSPTOissuedU.S. PatentNo. 5,745,522titled

“Randomizerfor Byte-WiseScramblingof Data,” (hereafter“the ‘522 Patent”). A true and

correctcopyof the ‘522 Patentis attachedheretoasExhibit D.

38. VIZIO is theownerofall rights, title andinterestin the ‘522 Patent,with thefull

andexclusiveright to bring suit to enforcethis patentand recoverfor pastinfringement.

39. Uponinformationandbelief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271,Defendantshave

infringed,andarecontinuingto infringeeitherliterally and/orunderthedoctrineof equivalents,

the ‘522 Patentby practicingoneor moreclaimsofthe ‘522Patentin the manufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,and/orimportationof digital televisions.

40. Uponinformationandbelief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,and arecontinuingto infringe,the ‘522 Patentby contributingto and/oractively

inducingothersto infringe one ormoreclaimsofthe ‘522 Patentby theirmanufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,supplyingand/orimportationof digital televisions.

41. As aresultofDefendants’infringement,VIZIO hassuffered,andwill continueto

sufferdamages.
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42. VIZIO is entitled to recoverfrom Defendantsthedamagesit hassustainedasa

resultof Defendants’infringing actsin an amountsubjectto proofattrial. VIZIO is also

entitled to its costsofsuit andinterest.

43. Uponinformationandbelief, Defendants’actsof infringementwere in conscious

andwillful disregardfor VIZIO’s patentrights,and theresultingdamageto VIZIO is suchasto

warrantthetreblingofdamagesto providejust compensation.

44. UnlessDefendantsareenjoinedby this Court from continuingtheirinfringement

of the ‘522 Patent,VIZIO will sufferadditionalirreparableharmandimpairmentof thevalueof

its patentrights andis, therefore,entitled to a permanentinjunctionagainstfurtherinfringement.

COUNT V

(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO 5,511,082)

45. VIZIO repeats,realleges,and incorporatesby reference,asthoughfully set forth

herein,theprecedingparagraphs.

46. OnApril 23, 1996, theUSPTOissuedU.S. PatentNo. 5,511,082titled

“PuncturedConvolutionalEncoder”(hereafter“the ‘082 Patent”), A trueandcorrectcopy ofthe

‘082 Patentis attachedheretoasExhibit E.

47. VIZIO is theownerof all rights, title and interestin the ‘082 Patent,with thefull

andexclusiveright to bringsuit to enforcethispatentandrecoverfor pastinfringement.

48. Uponinformationand belief, in violationof 35 U.S.C.§ 271, Defendantshave

infringed,andarecontinuingto infringeeitherliterally and/orunderthedoctrineof equivalents,

the ‘082 Patentby practicingoneor moreclaimsofthe ‘082 Patentin themanufacture,use,

offeringfor sale,sale,and/orimportationof digital televisions.
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49. Uponinformationandbelief, in violationof 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed, andarecontinuingto infringe,the ‘082 Patentby contributingto and/oractively

inducingothersto infringe one ormoreclaimsof the ‘082 Patentby theirmanufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,supplyingand/orimportationofdigital televisions.

50. As aresultofDefendants’infringement,VIZIO hassuffered,andwill continueto

sufferdamages.

51. VIZIO is entitled to recoverfrom Defendantsthedamagesit hassustainedasa

resultofDefendants’infringing actsin an amountsubjectto proofat trial. VIZIO is also

entitled to its costsof suit andinterest.

52. Uponinformationand belief, Defendants’actsof infringementwerein conscious

andwillful disregardfor VIZIO’s patentrights,andtheresultingdamageto VIZIO is suchasto

warrantthetreblingof damagesto providejust compensation.

53. UnlessDefendantsareenjoinedby this Courtfrom continuingtheir infringement

ofthe ‘082 Patent,VIZIO will sufferadditionalirreparableharmandimpairmentofthevalueof

its patentrights and is, therefore,entitled to apermanentinjunctionagainstfurther infringement.

COUNT VI

(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO 5,396,518)

54. VIZIO repeats,realleges,andincorporatesby reference,asthoughfully set forth

herein,theforegoingparagraphs.

55. On March 7, 1995,theUSPTO issuedU.S. PatentNo. 5,396,518titled

“ApparatusandMethod for CommunicatingDigital DataUsingTrellis Codingwith Punctured

ConvolutionalCodes”(hereafter“the ‘518 Patent”). A trueandcorrectcopyof the ‘518 Patent

is attachedheretoasExhibit F.
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56. VIZIO is theownerof all rights, title andinterestin the ‘518 Patent,with thefull

andexclusiveright to bring suit to enforcethis patentandrecoverfor pastinfringement.

57. Uponinformationandbelief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,and arecontinuingto infringeeitherliterally and/orunderthedoctrineof equivalents,

the ‘518 Patentby practicingoneor moreclaims ofthe ‘518 Patentin themanufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,and/orimportationofdigital televisions.

58. Uponinformationandbelief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,and arecontinuingto infringe,the ‘518 Patentby contributingto and/oractively

inducingothersto infringeone or moreclaimsofthe ‘518 Patentby theirmanufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,supplyingand/orimportationof digital televisions.

59. As aresultofDefendants’infringement,VIZIO hassuffered,andwill continueto

sufferdamages.

60. VIZIO is entitled to recoverfrom Defendantsthedamagesit hassustainedasa

resultofDefendants’infringing actsin an amountsubjectto proofattrial. VIZIO is also

entitledto its costsof suit andinterest.

61. Uponinformationand belief, Defendants’actsof infringementwere in conscious

andwillful disregardfor VIZIO’s patentrights,and theresultingdamageto VIZIO is suchasto

warrantthetreblingof damagesto providejust compensation.

62. UnlessDefendantsareenjoinedby thisCourt from continuingtheirinfringement

ofthe ‘518 Patent,VIZIO will sufferadditionalirreparableharmand impairmentof thevalueof

its patentrights andis, therefore,entitled to a permanentinjunctionagainstfurther infringement.

COUNT VII

(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO 5,233,629)
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63. VIZIO repeats,realleges,andincorporatesby reference,asthoughfully set forth

herein,theprecedingparagraphs.

64. On August3, 1993, theUSPTOissuedU.S. PatentNo. 5,233,629titled “Method

andApparatusfor CommunicatingDigital DatausingTrellis CodedQAM” (hereafter“the ‘629

Patent”). A trueandcorrectcopyof the ‘629 Patentis attachedheretoasExhibit H.

65. VIZIO is theownerof all rights, title and interestin the ‘629 Patent,with thefull

andexclusiveright to bringsuit to enforcethis patentandrecoverfor pastinfringement.

66. Uponinformationand belief, in violationof35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,andarecontinuingto infringeeitherliterally and/orunderthedoctrineof equivalents,

the ‘629 Patentby practicingoneor moreclaimsofthe ‘629 Patentin themanufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,and/orimportationof digital televisions.

67. Uponinformationand belief, in violationof 35 U.S.C. § 271, Defendantshave

infringed,andarecontinuingto infringe, the ‘629 Patentby contributingto and/oractively

inducingothersto infringe oneor moreclaimsofthe ‘629 Patentby theirmanufacture,use,

offering for sale,sale,supplyingand/orimportationof digital televisions.

68. As a resultof Defendants’infringement,VIZIO hassuffered,andwill continueto

sufferdamages.

69. VIZIO is entitled to recoverfrom Defendantsthedamagesit hassustainedasa

resultof Defendants’infringing actsin an amountsubjectto proofat trial. VIZIO is also

entitled to its costsof suit andinterest.

70. Uponinformationand belief, Defendants’actsof infringementwerein conscious

andwillful disregardfor VIZIO’s patentrights,andtheresultingdamageto VIZIO is suchasto

warrantthe treblingof damagesto providejust compensation.
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71. UnlessDefendantsareenjoinedby this Courtfrom continuingtheir infringement

ofthe ‘629 Patent,VIZIO will sufferadditionalirreparableharmandimpairmentofthevalueof

its patentrightsandis, therefore,entitledto a permanentinjunctionagainstfurther infringement.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE,VIZIO praysfor relief asfollows:

72. ThatDefendantsbe orderedto accountfor andpay overto VIZIO cumulative

damagesadequateto compensateVIZIO for Defendants’infringementofthe ‘096 Patent,the

‘761 Patent,the ‘887 Patent,the ‘522Patent,the ‘082 Patent,the ‘518 Patent,andthe ‘629

Patent(hereafter“the VIZIO Patents”),that theamountofrecoverybe increasedasprovidedby

law, up to threetimes, andthat interestandcostsbeawardedto VIZIO pursuantto 35 U.S.C. §

284;

73. ThatDefendants,theirofficers,directors,agents,servants,employees,attorneys,

confederates,representativesandany personand/orentitiesactingfor, with, by, through,in

concertwith, or in participationwith them,or any of them,be enjoinedpermanentlyfrom:

(a) further infringementof eachof VIZIO’s Patentspursuantto 35 U.S.C. §

271, eitherdirectly or contributorily; and

(b) from inducingothersto infringeVIZIO’s Patents.

74. Thatthepresentcasebefound exceptionalandthatDefendantsbe orderedto pay

attorneys’feespursuantto 35 U.S.C. § 285 for eachof theVIZIO Patents;

75. ThatDefendantsbe orderedto pay prejudgmentinterest;

76. ThatDefendantsbe orderedto pay all costsassociatedwith thisaction;and

77. ThatVIZIO be grantedsuchotherandadditional relief astheCourt deemsjust

andproper.
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Dated:June~009 Resp t lly submitted,

BlaneyHarper(D. .Bar
WalterD. Kelley,
TaraLynn R. Zurawski
JONESDAY
51 LouisianaAvenue,N.W.
Washington,D.C. 20001-2113
Telephone:(202)879-3939
Facsimile: (202)626-1700
Email: bharper@jonesday.com
Email: wdkelley(iI~ionesday.com
Email: tzurawski(~jonesday.com

Michael S. McCauley
JONESDAY
555 SouthFlowerStreet,Fiftieth Floor
Los Angeles,CA 90071
Telephone:(213)243-2455
Facsimile: (213)243-2539
E-mail: msmccauley~jonesday.com

Counselfor Plaintiff
VIZIO, INC.
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pursuantto Fed.R. Civ. P. 38, VIZIO respectfullydemandsa trial by jury on all issues

so triable.

Bla~’arper3 A~1~Counselfor Plaintif IZIO, Inc.
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